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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report and audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd (the “Company”) is to underwrite General Takaful
business as allowed under the Takaful Order, 2008 and Hukum Syara’.

There were no significant changes in the nature of its activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
BND’000
Profit for the year 3,932
STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

We certify that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2023 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed for and on its behalf by the
Board.

DIVIDENDS

The amount of dividends paid by the Company during the year were as follows:

BND’000
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2022: 1,375
Final dividend of BND$0.120 per ordinary share

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend in respect of financial year ended 31
December 2023 of BND$0.1476 per ordinary share will be proposed.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under
review, except as disclosed in the financial statements. There were no transfers to reserves subsequent
to the financial year end and to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS

The directors in office during the financial year and at the date of this report are:

Yang Berhormat Dato Seri Setia Awang Haji Ahmaddin bin Appointed on 6 June 2024
Haji Abdul Rahman (Chairman)

Yang Berhormat Dato Seri Setia Dr Awang Haji Mohd Amin Resigned on 6 June 2024
Liew bin Abdullah (Former Chairman)

Yang Mulia Dayang Dr. Nor Imtihan binti Haji Abdul Razak Appointed on 26" March 2025

Yang Mulia Awang Ir. Haji Mohammad Nazri bin Haji Appointed on 26™ March 2025
Mohammad Yusof

Yang Mulia Dr. Haji Noralizam bin Haji Aliakbar Appointed on 26™ March 2025

Yang Mulia Awang Haji Maswadi bin Haji Mohsin Resigned on 26" March 2025

Yang Mulia Dr Awang Abdul Nasir bin Haji Abdul Rani Resigned on 26 March 2025

Yang Mulia Awang Junaidi bin Haji Masri
Yang Mulia Awang Haji Sofian bin Haji Mohamad Jani

Yang Mulia Awang Haji Shahrildin bin Pehin Orang Kaya
Lela Utama Dato Paduka Haji Jaya

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there exist any arrangements
to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in the Company or any other corporate body.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit
(other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due receivable by
directors, or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company as disclosed in Note 19 of the financial
statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director, or with
a firm of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

None of the directors who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register required
to be kept under Section 145 (A), of the Companies Act, Chapter 39, any interest in shares and in options
in the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
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AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

YWW&M Yang Mulia Awang Haji Shahrildin bin
Awang Hajt addin bin Haji Abdul Rahman Pehin Orang Kaya Lela Utama Dato Paduka
(Chairman) Haji Jaya

{(Managing Director)

Brunei Darussalam

Date: 9 7 MAY 2025



REPORT OF THE SYARIAH ADVISORY BODY
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To The Shareholders of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd
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To fulfill the terms of our appointment and in our capacity as members of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd’s
Syariah Advisory Body, we are pleased to report as follows:

We have reviewed the principles and the contracts relating to the transactions and applications introduced
by Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd during the year ended 31 December 2023. We have also conducted our
review to form an opinion as to whether Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd has complied with Hukum Syara’
and also with the specific fatwas, rulings and guidelines issued by us.

Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd management is responsible for ensuring that the financial institution conducts
its business in accordance with Hukum Syara’. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our review of the operations of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd, and to report to you.

We conducted our review which included examining, on a test basis of each type of transaction, the relevant
documentation and procedures adopted by Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd.

We planned and performed our review so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we

considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that

Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd has not violated Hukum Syara’.

In our opinion:

a) The contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd during the
financial period ending 31 December 2023 that we have reviewed are in compliance with the Hukum

Syara’;

b) The allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts conform to the basis that
had been approved by us in accordance with Hukum Syara’;

c) All earnings that have been realised from sources or by means prohibited by Hukum Syara’ have been
separated and considered for disposal to charitable causes; and

d) The calculation of Zakat is in compliance with Hukum Syara’.



We pray to Allah Subhanahu Wa Ta’ala to assist everyone to act in accordance with the rulings
of Islamic finance and to keep away from carrying out any transactions that are prohibited by
Allah Subhanahu Wa Ta’ala. May Allah Subhanahu Wa Ta’ala bless us with the best taufiq and
hidayah to accomplish these cherished tasks, make us successful and forgive us in this world and
in the hereafter. Aamin.

Llaglly gl Ay ity

Signed on behalf of the Shariah Advisory Body in accordance with a resolution of the members,

2 N

Yang Mulia Dato Seri Setia
Haji Abdul Aziz bin Orang Kaya Maharaja Lela Haji Yussof
(Chairman)

Shariah Advisory Body Members in office during the financial year end and at the date of this
report are:

Yang Mulia Dato Seri Setia Haji Abdul Aziz bin Orang Kaya Maharaja Lela Haji Yussof
(Chairman)

Yang Mulia Dr Dayang Noryati binti Haji [brahim
Yang Mulia Dr Amnisuhailah binti Abarahan

Yang Mulia Dr Ahmad Lutfi bin Haji Abdul Razak

Brunei Darussalam

Date: 2 7 MAY 2025
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KPMG Telephone +673 222 8382
Unit 401- 403A, Wisma Jaya +673 222 6888
Jalan Pemancha Fax +673 222 8389

Bandar Seri Begawan BS8811
Brunei Darussalam

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd (“the Company”) which
comprise the statement of financial position of the as at Company as at 31 December 2023, the statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for
the year then ended, and notes, comprising material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Brunei Darussalam Companies Act, Chapter 39 (‘the Act’) and IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IFRS Accounting Standards’) so
as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2023, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Brunei
Darussalam, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all information
in the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

KPMG, a Brunei Darussalam rgistered partnership and a
member firm of the KPMG global organisation of
independent member firns affiliated with KPMG
International Limited, a privale English company limited by
guarantee
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the (Consolidated) Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Kemc

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

@ —
Sufian bin Zainul Abidin
Public Accountant

Brunei Darussalam
2 June 2025
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Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2023

Takaful revenue
Takaful service expenses

Net expenses from retakaful contracts

Takaful service result

Other investment revenue

Net impairment gain/(loss) on financial
assets

Investment return

Net finance income/(expenses) from takaful
contracts issued

Net finance income/(expenses) from
retakaful contracts held

Net takaful financial result

Other operating income/(expense)
Other operating expenses

Takaful profit before zakat and tax
Profit attributable to participants

Profit before zakat and tax attributable to
shareholders

Zakat

Tax expense attributable to shareholders

Profit for the year

Note

11
12

13

14

14

14

15
16

17

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

< 2023 > < 2022 >
General General
Takaful Company Takaful Company
s , BND’000 BND’000
BND’000  BND*000 Restated  Restated
88,528 88,280 86,431 85,378
(45,939) (44,369) (57,045) (52,596)
(20,308) (22,664) (12,402) (16,470)
22,281 21,247 16,984 16,312
3,773 5,794 3,190 4,759
1,794 2,842 (9,396) (10,621)
5,567 8.636 (6.206) (5.862)
40 92) 11 (537
(182) (182) (&) 3
(142) 274) 6 (534)
(D) 5,278 - 6,191
(1,985) (5,001) (370) (1,272)
25,720 29,886 10,414 14,835
(25,720) (25,720) (10,414) (10,414)
= 4,166 - 4,421
i (92) i u
— (142) - (1,217)
— 3,932 - 3,204

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Certification

I certify that the above financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position as
at 31 December 2023 and the financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Yang Mulia Awang Hfi Shahrildin bin Pehin
Orang Kaya Lela Utama Dato Paduka Haji Jaya
(Managing Director)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed for and on its behalf
of the Board.

Y erhormat Dato Seri-8etia Awang Haji
Ahmaddin bin Haji Abdul Rahman

(Chairman)

Yang Mulia‘fwang Haj {Shahrildin bin Pehin
Orang Kaya Lela Utama Dato Paduka Haji Jaya

(Managing Director)

Brunei Darussalam

pate: 2 7 MAY 2005

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

General General

Takaful Comban Takaful Company

BND’000 o rbY BND000  BND’000

Restated Restated
Profit for the year - 3,932 — 3,204
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
qu.nty investments at FVOCI — net change in N 1,507 . 235
fair value

Total comprehensive income for the year — 5,439 — 3,439

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

FS4



Statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2023

Balance at 1 January 2022, as previously reported
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 17, net of
tax

Restated balance at 1 January 2022
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year (restated)

Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends to owners of the Company
Total transactions with owners of the Company

Restated balance as at 31 December 2022/
At 1 January 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends to owners of the Company

Total transactions with owners of the Company

At 31 December 2023

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Note Sh:?re Fair value Reta¥ned Total
capital  reserve earnings
BND’000 BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
11,421 11,700 37,831 60,952
- ~ 12,048 12,048
11,421 11,700 49,879 73,000
- - 3,204 3,204
— 235 — 235
- 235 3,204 3,439
10 | - — (2,282) (2,282)]
- — (2,282) (2,282)
11,421 11,935 50,801 74,157
— - 3,932 3,932
— 1,507 — 1,507
— 1,507 3,932 5,439
10 = - (1375 (1,375)]
= - (1,375) (1,375)
11,421 13,442 53,358 78,221

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Dividend income

Finance costs (interest charge on lease)
Tax and zakat expense

(Increase)/ Decrease in fair value of other investments

Effect of IFRS 16 Leases
Depreciation

Changes in:

Other receivables

Other payables

Takaful contract assets/liabilities
Retakaful contract assets/liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividend received

Acquisition of other investments

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs on leases paid

Payment of lease liabilities (principal portion)

Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Note 2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

3,932 3,204

(1,171) (1,171)

2 20 10
17 234 1,217
(5,738) 7,387
(10) (7

178 184

(2,555) 10,824
(73) (6,735)

(2,549) 4,881

3,742 8,277

5,192 9,058

3,757 26,305
(1,216) (1,321)

2,541 24,984

1,171 1,171
= (6,000)
1,171 (4,829)
22 (20) (10)
22 (162) (182)
10 (1,375) (2,282)
(1,557) (2,474)

2,155 17,681

101,553 83,872

8 103,708 101,553

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Notes to the financial statements
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2025.

Domicile and activities

Takaful Brunei Am Sdn Bhd (the “Company”) is a private limited company, incorporated and
domiciled in Brunei Darussalam. The address of the Company’s principal place of business and
registered office is as follows:

8 Floor, Dar Takaful IBB Utama
Jalan Pemancha, Bandar Seri Begawan BS8711
Negara Brunei Darussalam

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 do not
include other entities.

The principal activities of the Company are to manage and underwrite General Takaful businesses.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IFRS Accounting Standards’). The
changes to material accounting policies are described in note 2.5.

The Company is required to present financial statements for itself and the takaful funds it manages
and controls in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.
The statements of financial position and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the Takaful Operator and General Takaful Fund are supplementary financial information
presented in accordance with the requirements of Takaful Order, 2008 (“TO”) in Brunei to present
assets, liabilities, income and expenses of takaful funds from its own. The statements of financial
position and profit or loss and comprehensive income of the Takaful Operator include only assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of the Takaful Operator, excluding the takaful funds managed by
it. The statements of financial position and profit or loss and comprehensive income of the General
Takaful Fund include only the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the General Takaful Fund
that is set up, managed and controlled by the Takaful Operator.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements as a whole, the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of the Takaful funds are combined with those of the Takaful Operator whereby the related
inter-fund balances, including Qard, and transactions are eliminated in full. The accounting policies
adopted for the Takaful Operator and takaful fund are uniform for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances.

The takaful fund is consolidated and combined from the date of control and continue to be

consolidated until the date such control ceases which occur when the Company’s license to manage
takaful business is withdrawn or surrendered.

FS7
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Brunei Darussalam dollars (“BND”), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Brunei Darussalam dollars
has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and information about assumptions and
estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following
notes:

Note 20 — Takaful risk management
Note 21(c)(iv) — Determination of fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable
inputs

Takaful and Retakaful certificates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

The methods used to measure takaful certificates

The Company primarily uses deterministic projections to estimate the present value of future cash
flows (“PVFCF”)

The following assumptions were used when estimating future cash flows:

FS8
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Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

General Takaful Fund

Average claims cost
Reserves are based on assumptions that historical average claim cost is reflective of the future
experience. Increase in average costs will increase future liabilities.

Average claim frequency
Reserves are based on assumption that historical average claim number in each accident year
reflects future experience. A change in average number of claims will impact future liabilities.

For sensitivities with regards to assumptions made that have the most significant impact on
measurement under IFRS 17, refer to Note 20.

Discount rates

All cash flows are discounted using risk-free yield curves adjusted to reflect the characteristics of
the cash flows and the liquidity of the takaful contracts. The central regulatory authority for
financial institutions in Brunei Darussalam, Brunei Darussalam Central Bank (“BDCB”) has
determined the risk-free rates to be adopted for the Company would be the Singapore yield curve.
As Brunei does not produce yield curves of its own, neither does it issue long-term government
bonds, the Singapore yield curve is deemed an adequate proxy for estimating the PVFCF. The
yield curve is interpolated between the last available market data point and an ultimate forward
rate, which reflects long-term real profit rate and inflation expectations. Although the ultimate
forward rate is subject to revision, it is expected to be stable with no significant changes to long-
term expectations.

The tables below set out the yield curves used to discount the cash flows of takaful contracts for
major currencies.

2023 2022

1 5 10 15 20 1 5 10 15 20
year  years  years  years  years | year  years years  years  years

Immediate non-life contracts (%)
SGD 3.555 2218 2.755 2.77 2.716 | 3.754 2.722  3.196 1.808 1.429

All other takaful contracts (%)
SGD 3.555 2218  2.755 2.77 2716 | 3.754 2.722  3.196 1.808 1.429

Cash flows that vary based on the returns on any financial underlying items are adjusted for the
effect of that variability using risk-neutral measurement techniques and discounted using the
discount rates discussed above determined by BDCB.
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Risk adjustments for non-financial risk

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the compensation that the Company requires
for bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows of groups of takaful
contracts and covers takaful risk, lapse risk and expense risk. The risk adjustment reflects an
amount that a takaful operator would rationally pay to remove the uncertainty that future cash
flows will exceed the best estimate amount.

The Company has estimated the risk adjustment using a confidence level (probability of
sufficiency) approach at the 75th percentile. That is, the Company has assessed its indifference to
uncertainty for all product lines (as an indication of the compensation that it requires for bearing
non-financial risk) as being equivalent to the 75th percentile confidence level less the mean of an
estimated probability distribution of the future cash flows. The Company has estimated the
probability distribution of the future cash flows, and the additional amount above the expected
PVFCEF required to meet the target percentiles

Contractual Service Margin

The Contractual Service Margin (“CSM”) is a component of the asset or liability for the group of
takaful contracts that represents the unearned profit the Company will recognise as it provides
services in the future. An amount of the CSM for a group of takaful contracts is recognised in profit
or loss as takaful revenue in each period to reflect the services provided under the group of takaful
certificates in that period. The amount is determined by:

* Identifying the coverage units in the group;

*  Allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounts in profit or loss
to reflect the services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the
current period and expected to be provided in the future; and

*  Recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated to coverage units provided in the period.

The number of coverage units in a group is the quantity of coverage provided by the contracts in the
group, which is determined by considering the quantity of the benefits provided and the expected
coverage duration. For groups of general takaful contracts, the quantity of benefit is the contractually
agreed sum covered over the duration of the contracts. The total coverage units of each group of
takaful certificates are reassessed at the end of each reporting period to adjust for the reduction of
remaining coverage for claims paid, expectations of lapses and cancellation of contracts in the
period. They are then allocated based on probability-weighted average duration of each coverage
unit provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values,
management assesses and documents the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards, including
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.
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When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1: quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement (with
Level 3 being the lowest).

Further information about assumptions made in measuring fair value is included in Note 20 —
Takaful risk management and Note 21 — Financial risk management.

Changes in material accounting policies

Standards, amendment to published standard and interpretations that are effective and
applicable to the Company.

The Company initially applied IFRS 17 and IFRS 9, including any consequential amendments to
other standards, from 1 January 2023. These standards have brought significant changes to the
accounting for takaful and retakaful contracts and financial instruments. As a result, the Company
has restated certain comparative amounts and presented a third statement of financial position as
at 1 January 2022.

The initial application of the abovementioned standards, amendment and interpretations do not have
any material impacts to the current and prior period’s financial statements upon their first adoption,
excepl [or IFRS 17 Insurance contracts.

2.5.1. IFRS 17 Takaful and Retakaful certificates

Recognition, measurement and presentation of takaful contracts

IFRS 17 establishes principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
takaful contracts, retakaful contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation
features. It introduces a model that measures groups of contracts based on the Company’s
estimates of the present value of future cash flows that are expected to arise as the Company fulfils
the contracts, an explicit risk adjustment for non-financial risk and a CSM.

Under IFRS 17, takaful revenue in each reporting period represents the changes in the liabilities
for remaining coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive
consideration and an allocation of takaful contributions that relate to recovering takaful
acquisition cash flows. In addition, investment components are no longer included in takaful
revenue and takaful service expenses.
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Previously, all acquisition costs were recognised and presented as separate assets from the related
takaful contracts (‘deferred acquisition costs’) until those costs were included in profit or loss.
Under IFRS 17, only takaful acquisition cash flows that arise before the recognition of the related
takaful contracts are recognised as separate assets and are tested for recoverability. These assets
are presented in the carrying amount of the related portfolio of contracts and are derecognised
once the related contracts have been recognised.

Income and expenses from retakaful contracts other than takaful finance income and expenses are
now presented as a single net amount in profit or loss. Previously, amounts recovered from
retakaful operator and retakaful expenses were presented separately.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 17 have been applied using
a full retrospective approach to the extent practicable. Under the full retrospective approach, at 1
January 2022 the Company:

- identified, recognised and measured each group of takaful and retakaful contracts as if IFRS
17 had always been applied;

- identified, recognised and measured any assets for takaful acquisition cash flows as if IFRS
17 had always been applied, except that the recoverability assessment was not applied before
1 January 2022;

- derecognised previously reported balances that would not have existed if IFRS17 had always
been applied. These included some deferred acquisition costs for takaful contracts,
intangible assets related to takaful contracts (previously referred to as ‘value of business
acquired’), takaful receivables and payables, and provisions for levies that are attributable
to existing takaful contracts. Under IFRS 17, they are included in the measurement of the
takaful contracts; and

- recognised any resulting net difference in equity.

The Company has applied the transition provisions in IFRS 17 and has not disclosed the impact
of the adoption of IFRS 17 on each financial statement line item. The effects of adopting IFRS
17 on the financial statements at 1 January 2022 are presented in the statement of changes in

equity.

For the General (non-life) risk, the Company applied the fair value approach in IFRS 17 to
identify, recognise and measure certain groups of contracts at 1 January 2022, because it was
impracticable to apply the full retrospective approach.

The Company considered the full retrospective approach impracticable for contracts in these
segments under any of the following circumstances.

- The effects of retrospective application were not determinable because the information
required had not been collected (or had not been collected with sufficient granularity) and
was unavailable because of system migrations, data retention requirements or other
reasons. Such information included for certain contracts:

- expectations about a contract’s profitability and risks of becoming onerous
required for identifying groups of contracts;

- information about historical cash flows and discount rates required for
determining the estimates of cash flows on initial recognition and subsequent changes on
a retrospective basis;
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- information required to allocate fixed and variable overheads to groups of
contracts, because the Company’s previous accounting policies did not require such
information; and

- information about changes in assumptions and estimates, which might not have
been documented on an ongoing basis.

- The full retrospective approach required assumptions about what Company
management’s intentions would have been in previous periods or significant accounting
estimates that could not be made without the use of hindsight. Such assumptions and
estimates included for certain contracts:

- expectations at contract inception about certificate holders’ shares of the returns
on underlying items at contract inception required for identifying direct
participating contracts;

- assumptions about discount rates, because the Company had not been subject to
any accounting or regulatory framework that required takaful contracts to be
measured on a present value basis before 2020; and

- assumptions about the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, because the
Company had not been subject to any accounting or regulatory framework that
required an explicit margin for non-financial risk before 2020.

Irrespective of the transition approach used, the following items have not been applied
retrospectively.

- The consequential amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations introduced by IFRS 17
require the Company to classify contracts acquired as takaful contracts based on the
contractual terms and other factors at the date of acquisition. This requirement was not
applied to business combinations before 1 January 2023, for which the Company
classified contracts acquired as takaful contracts based on the conditions at contract
inception.

To indicate the effect of applying the fair value approach on CSM, takaful revenue and takaful
finance income or expenses, the Company has provided additional disclosures in Note 6.

Assets for takaful acquisition cash flows

For the General risk segment, the Company also applied the fair value approach to identify,
recognise and measure certain assets for takaful acquisition cash flows at 1 January 2022.

It was impracticable to apply the full retrospective approach because:

- data had not been collected with sufficient granularity;

- information required to identify fixed and variable overheads as relating to acquisition
activities and to allocate them to groups of contracts was not available; or

- original assumptions about the manner in which the Company would have expected
takaful acquisition cash flows to be recovered, which were required to allocate them to
renewals, could not be made without the use of hindsight
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2.5.2. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(i) Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 includes three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised
cost, FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on
the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity investments,
financings and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets. Under IFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

The Company classifies and measures financial assets and accounts for related gains and losses
under IFRS 9 as described in Note 3.2.

IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company's accounting policies for financial liabilities.
(ii) Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with a forward-looking 'expected credit loss'
model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments at FVOCI. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under IAS 39 (see
Note 3.2).

(iii) Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below.

* The comparative period has been restated. However, information about financial instruments
that had already been derecognised at 1 January 2023 continues to be reported in accordance
with TIAS 39 for the comparative period.

* The following assessment have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at 1 January 2023.

* The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.
* Ifafinancial asset had low credit risk at 1 January 2023, then the Company determines that the

credit risk on the asset had not increased significantly since initial recognition.

As permitted by IFRS 7, the Company has not disclosed information about the line item amounts
that are reported in accordance with the classification and measurement (including impairment)
requirements of IFRS 9 for 2022 and those that would have been reported in accordance with the
classification and measurement requirements of IAS 39 for 2023.
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() Effect of initial application

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table and accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories
under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's

financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 January 2023.

Original New

Original New carrying carrying
In BND’000 Note classification . . amount amount
classification
under IAS 39 der TFRS 9 under under
ARCEl IAS39  IFRS9
Financial assets
Balances with BDCB Fmanf:mg and Amortised cost 2,000 2,000
receivables
Cash and cash equivalents Fmanf:mg o Amortised cost 101,533 101,533
receivables
Financial investments — other
Unquoted equity security Avallzeﬁ);e Hore FVOCI 16,644 16,644
Equity Securities A"a‘iﬁ’ée for  pyrRL 7,368 7,368
Sukuk/ Debt securities Avallzze for  pyrRL 91,245 91,245
Receivables
Other receivables Fmanf:lng . Amortised cost 12,816 12,816
receivables
Total financial assets 231,606 231,606
Financial liabilities
Other payables Amortised costAmortised cost 7,173 7,173
Total financial liabilities 7,173 7,173

The Company’s accounting policies on the classification of financial instruments under IFRS 9 are
set out in Note 3.2.

2.5.3 Material accounting policy information

The Company adopted Amendments for IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of
Accounting Policies for the first time in 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
disclosed in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies.
The amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting entities to provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users
need to understand other information in the financial statements.
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Management reviewed the accounting policies and made updates to the information disclosed in
Note 3 Material accounting policies (2022: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in
line with the amendments.

Material accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, except as explained in note 2.5, which addresses changes in accounting
policies.

In addition, the Company adopted the Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
Disclosure of Accounting Policies from 1 January 2023. The amendments require the disclosure of
‘material’, rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies. Although the amendments did not result in
any changes to the accounting policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information
in certain instances (see note 2.5 for further information).

Certain comparative amounts have been restated, reclassified or re-presented, as a result of either
changes in material accounting policies (see note 2.5).

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign
currency differences arising on translation are generally recognised in profit or loss and presented
within other operating expenses. However, foreign currency differences arising from the
translation of an equity investment designated as at FVOCI is recognised in OCIL.

Financial instruments
Financial assets (Prior to 1s# January 2023)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised on trade date, when the Company commits to purchase or sell the
assets. The assets are classified into the following categories, available for sale and financings and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature of the asset and the purpose for which the
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial
recognition. The designation of financial assets at FVTPL is irrevocable.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

ii.

iii.

iv.

Financings and receivables

Financings and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Company intends to
sell in the short term or that it has designated at fair value through profit or loss. Financings and
receivables include cash and cash equivalents, Takaful and other receivables and financings.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective yield method.
Financing and advances

Financing and advances are financial assets with fixed or determinable payment that are not
quoted in active market. Such assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, financing and advances are
measured at amortised cost, using the effective profit method, less any impairment losses.

Financing and advances comprises cash and cash equivalents, balances with Brunei Darussalam
Central Bank and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits that are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the
management of its short-term commitments. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
pledged deposits are excluded whilst bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that
form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Auvailable-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets. AFS
financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available-for-sale debt
instruments, are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value
reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss accumulated in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise equity securities and sukuk.

Derecognition

Upon disposal of the financial assets, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale
proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in the other comprehensive income relating to
that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Other financial assets
i.  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets (1sf January 2023 and onwards)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised on trade date, when the Company commits to purchase or sell the
assets. The assets are classified into the following categories, amortised cost, FVOCI and FVTPL.
The classification designated at initial recognition based on both instrument’s cash flow
characteristics and business model. Classification is irrevocable once adopted.

Classification
1. Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and

not designated as FVTPL:

e Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows

e  Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and not
designated as FVTPL:

e Financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

o Contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

iii. FVTPL
Financial asset that meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI may be
designated as FVTPL through an irrevocable election if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.

All other financial assets are classified as FVTPL.
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Business model assessment

The Company manages the financial assets under two main categories; Family Takaful Fund and
Takaful Operator Fund. Both categories have their own investment objective based on target long
term rates of return subject to an acceptable level of risk which is appropriate to the financial strength
of the Funds, nature of liabilities and the Company’s approved risk appetite.

The investment team aims to deliver these returns on investments through a multi-asset and multi-
manager strategy, using active and passive strategies and a strategic and tactical asset allocation
model which aims to optimise portfolio returns and/ or deliver operational efficiency.

Therefore, the Company determine the principal business model (BM) for managing the financial
assets is most appropriately determined at the 2 main categories, Family Takaful Fund and Takaful
Operator Fund. This is based on,
o Investments within both main categories are managed collectively to an overall return
target, duration and participant liability cashflow requirements.
e BM determination is not dependant on managements’ intention on an individual
investment.
e Investment performance for both main categories are measured and reported separately

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPI

For SPPI assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset upon initial
recognition. ‘Interest” is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual
terms of the instruments. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers the following key aspects:

e Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows

e Prepayment and extension terms,

e Terms that the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets

e Features that modify consideration of time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending

risks and cost associated with the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent measurement
i.  Amortised cost

Financial asset measured at amortised cost using effective yield method. Profit income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. Gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

ii. FVOCI
Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income shall recognise the gain
or loss in other comprehensive income, except for foreign exchange gains and losses until the asset
is derecognised. Impairment loss is also recognised under other comprehensive income. When the
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Profit calculated using effective yield method is
recognised in profit or loss.

FS19



TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

ili. FVTPL

Financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss shall recognise the gain or loss in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when the contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled,or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new
financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment
.  Non-derivative financial assets and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:
e debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
¢ financial assets measured at amortised cost;

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event(s) has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset, and that the loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably.

Loss allowances for takaful receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company consider reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information, where available.

The Company consider a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to action such as
realising security (if any is held).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events over that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period of the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which Company are exposed to credit risk.
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Simplified approach

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs for all trade receivables
(including lease receivables) and contract assets. The simplified approach requires the loss
allowance to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimates of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at
the effective yield rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt investments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer ;

e abreach of contract such as a default;

o it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets are deducted
from the gross carrying amount of these assets.

For debt investments at FVOCI, loss allowances are charged to profit or loss and recognised in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.
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Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part
of that equipment. If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced component is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder
of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each component of an item of property and equipment, unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Right-of-use of assets according to the contract lease period

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted if appropriate.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property, the Company has elected not to separate the
non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that
the Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case, the right-of-use asset will be depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the profit rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by analysing its borrowings from various
external sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
an extension option, and payments of penalties for early termination of a leasc unless the
Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost under the effective profit method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is
a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of

the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in ‘property and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘lease
liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which related services are
rendered by employees.

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee,
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Takaful and Retakaful Contracts — definition and classification

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant takaful risk are classified as takaful
contracts. Contracts held by the Company under which it transfers significant takaful risk related
to underlying takaful contracts are classified as retakaful contracts. Takaful and retakaful
contracts also expose the Company to financial risk.

Takaful contracts may be issued and retakaful contracts may be initiated by the Company, or they
may be acquired in a business combination or in a transfer of contracts that do not form a business.
All references in these accounting policies to ‘takaful contracts’ and ‘retakaful contracts’ include
contracts issued, initiated or acquired by the Company, unless otherwise stated.

All other takaful contracts and all retakaful contracts are classified as contracts without direct
participation features. Some of these contracts are measured under the PAA.

The Company does not issue retakaful certificates.
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Separating components from takaful and retakaful contracts

At inception, the Company separates the following components from a takaful or retakaful
contract and accounts for them as if they were stand-alone financial instruments:

e derivatives embedded in the contract whose economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contract, and whose terms would not meet the definition of a
takaful or retakaful contract as a stand-alone instrument; and

e distinct investment components - i.e. investment components that are not highly inter-related
with the takaful components and for which contracts with equivalent terms are sold, or could
be sold, separately in the same market or the same jurisdiction.

After separating any financial instrument components, the Company separates any promises to
transfer distinct goods or non-takaful services to participants and accounts for them as separate
contracts with customers (i.e. not as takaful contracts). A good or service is distinct if the participant
can benefit from it either on its own or with other resources that are readily available to the
participant. A good or service is not distinct and is accounted for together with the takaful
component if the cash flows and risks associated with the good or service are highly inter-related
with the cash flows and risks associated with the takaful component, and the Company provides a
significant service of integrating the good or service with the takaful component.

Currently, the Company's products do not include distinct components that require separation
Aggregation and recognition of Takaful and Retakaful contracts
Takaful contracts

Takaful contracts are aggregated into groups for measurement purposes. Groups of Takaful
contracts are determined by identifying portfolios of Takaful contracts, each comprising contracts
subject to similar risks and managed together, and dividing each portfolio into annual cohorts (i
.. by year of issue) and each annual cohort into three groups based on the profitability of
contracts:

- any contracts that are onerous on initial recognition;

- any contracts that, on initial recognition, have no significant possibility of becoming onerous
subsequently; and

- any remaining contracts in the annual cohort.

Contracts within a portfolio that would fall into different groups only because law or regulation
specifically constrains the Company’s practical ability to set a different price or level of benefits
for certificate holders with different characteristics are included in the same group. A Takaful
contract issued by the Company is recognised from the earliest of:

- the beginning of its coverage period (i .e. the period during which the Company provides
services in respect of any contributions within the boundary of the contract);

- when the first payment from the participant becomes due or, if there is no contractual due
date, when it is received from the participant; and

- when facts and circumstances indicate that the group of takaful contracts to which a takaful
contract will belong is onerous.
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A takaful contract acquired in a transfer of contracts or a business combination is recognised on
the date of acquisition. When the contract is recognised, it is added to an existing group of
contracts or, if the contract does not qualify for inclusion in an existing group, it forms a new
group to which future contracts are added. Groups of contracts are established on initial
recognition and their composition is not revised once all contracts have been added to the group.

The Company applies surplus mutualisation in determining the level of aggregation, which is guided
by the terms of the takaful contracts to ensure that it reflects the nature and terms of the takaful
contracts. This is in-line with Takaful concept of mutual guarantee whereby the participants
mutually agree to contribute to a pool of Risk Fund and with the aim to provide mutual financial aid
and assistance to the participants in case of need. Any deficit arises in a single contract is mutualised
among the product grouping.

Takaful acquisition cash flows

Takaful acquisition cash flows are allocated to groups of Takaful contracts using a systematic and
rational method and considering, in an unbiased way, all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

If Takaful acquisition cash flows are directly attributable to a group of contracts (e.g. non-
refundable commissions paid on issuance of a contract), then they are allocated to that group and
to the groups that will include renewals of those contracts. The allocation to renewals only applies
to non-life contracts and certain term assurance and critical illness contracts that have a one-year
coverage period. The Company expects to recover part of the related Takaful acquisition cash
flows through renewals of these contracts. The allocation to renewals is based on the manner in
which the Company expects to recover those cash flows.

If Takaful acquisition cash flows are directly attributable to a portfolio but not to a group of
contracts, then they are allocated to groups in the portfolio using a systematic and rational method.

Takaful acquisition cash flows arising before the recognition of the related group of contracts are
recognised as an asset. Takaful acquisition cash flows arise when they are paid or when a liability
is required to be recognised under a standard other than IFRS 17. Such an asset is recognised for
each group of contracts to which the takaful acquisition cash flows are allocated. The asset is
derecognised, fully or partially, when the takaful acquisition cash flows are included in the
measurement of the group of contracts.

When the Company acquires takaful contracts in a transfer of contracts or a business combination,
at the date of acquisition it recognises an asset for Takaful acquisition cash flows at fair value for
the rights to obtain:

- renewals of contracts recognised at the date of acquisition; and

- other future contracts after the date of acquisition without paying again takaful acquisition
cash flows that the acquiree has already paid.

At each reporting date, the Company revises the amounts allocated to groups to reflect any
changes in assumptions that determine the inputs to the allocation method used. Amounts
allocated to a group are not revised once all contracts have been added to the group
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The measurement of a group of contracts includes all of the future cash flows within the boundary
of each contract in the group, determined as follows.

Takaful contracts

Retakaful contracts

Cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from
substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting
period in which the Company can compel the participant to pay
contributions or has a substantive obligation to provide services
(including Takaful coverage and any investment services).

A substantive obligation to provide services ends when:

- the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the
particular certificate holders and can set a price or level of
benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or

- the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the
portfolio that contains the contract and can set a price or level
of benefits that fully reflects the risks of that portfolio, and the
pricing of the premiums up to the reassessment date does not
take into account risks that relate to periods after the
reassessment date.

The reassessment of risks considers only risks transferred from
certificate holders to the Company, which may include both
Takaful and financial risks, but exclude lapse and expense risks.

Cash flows are within the contract boundary if they arise from
substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting
period in which the Company is compelled to pay amounts to the
retakaful operator or has a substantive right to receive services
from the retakaful operator.

A substantive right to receive services [rom the retakaful operator
ends when the retakaful operator:

- has the practical ability to reassess the risks transferred to it and
can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects those
reassessed risks; or

- has a substantive right to terminate the coverage.

The contract boundary of each group of takaful contracts issued and retakaful contracts held are
reassessed at each reporting date to include the effect of changes in circumstances on the
Company's substantive rights and obligations and, therefore, may change overtime.
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Measurement - Contracts not measured under the PAA
Takaful contracts - Initial measurement

The CSM of a group of Takaful contracts represents the unearned profit that the Company will
recognise as it provides services under those contracts. On initial recognition of a group of Takaful
contracts, if the total of (a) the fulfilment cash flows, (b) any cash flows arising at that date and
(c) any amount arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously recognised
for cash flows related to the group (including assets for Takaful acquisition cash flows under (iii))
is a net inflow, then the group is not onerous. In this case, the CSM is measured as the equal and
opposite amount of the net inflow, which results in no income or expenses arising on initial
recognition.

For groups of contracts acquired in a transfer of contracts or a business combination, the
consideration received for the contracts is included in the fulfilment cash flows as a proxy for the
contributions received at the date of acquisition. In a business combination, the consideration
received is the fair value of the contracts at that date.

A negative CSM at the date of inception means the group of takaful contracts issued is onerous.
A loss from onerous takaful contracts is recognised in profit or loss immediately with no CSM
recognised on the balance sheet on initial recognition. A loss component is created to depict any
losses recognised in profit or loss, which determines the amounts that are subsequently presented
in profit or loss as reversals of losses on onerous groups.

For groups of takaful contracts acquired, the consideration received for the takaful contracts is
included in the FCF as a proxy for the contributions received at the date of acquisition.

Takaful contracts - Subsequent measurement

The carrying amount of a group of Takaful contracts at each reporting date is the sum of the
liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. The liability for remaining
coverage comprises (a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be provided under
the contracts in future periods and (b) any remaining CSM at that date. The liability for incurred
claims includes (he fulfilment cash flows for incurred claims and expenses that have not yet becn
paid, including claims that have been incurred but not yet reported.

The fulfilment cash flows of groups of Takaful contracts are measured at the reporting date using
current estimates of future cash flows, current discount rates and current estimates of the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk. Changes in fulfilment cash flows are recognised as follows.

Changes relating to future services Adjusted against the CSM (or recognised in the
Takaful service result in profit or loss if the group is
onerous)

Changes relating to current or past Recognised in the Takaful service result in profit or

services loss

Effects of the time value of money, Recognised as Takaful finance income or expenses

financial risk and changes therein on
estimated future cash flows
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The CSM of each group of contracts is calculated at each reporting date as follows.

Takaful contracts without direct participation features

The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the
year, adjusted for:

the CSM of any new contracts that are added to the group in the year;

interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the year, measured at the discount
rates on nominal cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on any underlying items
determined on initial recognition;

changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, except to the extent that:

* any increases in the fulfilment cash flows exceed the carrying amount of the CSM, in which
case the excess is recognised as a loss in profit or loss and creates a loss component ; or

* any decreases in the fulfilment cash flows are allocated to the loss component, reversing
losses previously recognised in profit or loss;

the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM; and

the amount recognised as takaful revenue because of the services provided in the year.

Changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services comprise:

experience adjustments arising from contribution received in the year that relate to future
services and related cash flows, measured at the discount rates determined on initial
recognition;

changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the liability for remaining
coverage, measured at the discount rates determined on initial recognition, except for those
that arise from the effects of the time value of money, financial risk and changes therein;

differences between (a) any investment component expected to become payable in the year,
determined as the payment expected at the start of the year plus any takaful finance income or
expenses related to that expected payment before it becomes payable; and (b) the actual
amount that becomes payable in the year;

differences between any financing to a certificate holder expected to become repayable in the
year and the actual amount that becomes repayable in the year; and

changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future services.

Changes in discretionary cash flows are regarded as relating to future services and accordingly
adjust the CSM.
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Retakaful contracts

To measure a group of Retakaful contracts, the Company applies the same accounting policies as
are applied to Takaful contracts without direct participation features, with the following
modifications.

The carrying amount of a group of Retakaful contracts at each reporting date is the sum of the
asset for remaining coverage and the asset for incurred claims. The asset for remaining coverage
comprises (a) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be received under the
contracts in future periods and (b) any remaining CSM at that date.

The Company measures the estimates of the present value of future cash flows using assumptions
that are consistent with those used to measure the estimates of the present value of future cash
flows for the underlying Takaful contracts, with an adjustment for any risk of non-performance
by the retakaful operator. The effect of the non-performance risk of the re insurer is assessed at
each reporting date and the effect of changes in the non-performance risk is recognised in profit
or loss.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk is the amount of risk being transferred by the Company
to the retakaful operator.

On initial recognition, the CSM of a group of Retakaful contracts represents a net cost or net gain
on participating Retakaful. It is measured as the equal and opposite amount of the total of (a) the
fulfilment cash flows, (b) any amount arising from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities
previously recognised for cash flows related to the group, (c) any cash flows arising at that date
and (d) any income recognised in profit or loss because of onerous underlying contracts
recognised at that date.

However, if any net cost on participating Retakaful coverage relates to insured events that covered
before the participating of the group, then the Company recognises the cost immediately in profit
or loss as an expense.

The carrying amount of the CSM at each reporting date is the carrying amount at the start of the
year, adjusted for:

- the CSM of any new contracts that are added to the group in the year;

- interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the year, measured at the discount
rates on nominal cash flows that do not vary based on the returns on any underlying items
determined on initial recognition;

- income recognised in profit or loss in the year on initial recognition of onerous underlying
contracts;

- reversals of a loss-recovery component to the extent that they are not changes in the fulfilment
cash flows of the group of Retakaful contracts;

- changes in fulfilment cash flows that relate to future services, measured at the discount rates
determined on initial recognition, unless they result from changes in fulfilment cash flows of
onerous underlying contracts, in which case they are recognised in profit or loss and create or
adjust a loss-recovery component;
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- the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM; and
- the amount recognised in profit or loss because of the services received in the year,
Takaful contracts

On initial recognition of each group of contracts, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining
coverage is measured at the contribution received on initial recognition minus any Takaful
acquisition cash flows allocated to the group at that date, and adjusted for any amount arising
from the derecognition of any assets or liabilities previously recognised for cash flows related to
the group (including assets for Takaful acquisition cash flows). The Company has chosen not to
expense Takaful acquisition cash flows when they are incurred.

Subsequently, the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage is increased by any
contribution received and the amortisation of Takaful acquisition cash flows recognised as
expenses, and decreased by the amount recognised as Takaful revenue for services provided and
any additional Takaful acquisition cash flows allocated after initial recognition. On initial
recognition of each group of contracts, the Company expects that the time between providing
each part of the services and the related contributions due date is no more than a year.
Accordingly, the Company has chosen not to adjust the liability for remaining coverage to reflect
the time value of money and the effect of financial risk.

If at any time during the coverage period, facts and circumstances indicate that a group of
contracts is onerous, then the Company recognises a loss in profit or loss and increases the liability
for remaining coverage to the extent that the current estimates of the fulfilment cash flows that
relate to remaining coverage exceed the carrying amount of the liability for remaining coverage.
The fulfilment cash flows are discounted (at current rates) if the liability for incurred claims is
also discounted (see below).

The Company recognises the liability for incurred claims of a group of Takaful contracts at the
amount of the fulfilment cash flows relating to incurred claims. The future cash flows are
discounted (at current rates) unless they are expected to be paid in one year or less from the date
the claims are incurred.

Retakaful contracts

The Company applies the same accounting policies to measure a group of Retakaful contracts,
adapted where necessary to reflect features that differ from those of Takaful contracts.

If a loss-recovery component created for a group of Retakaful contracts measured under the PAA,
then the Company adjusts the carrying amount of the asset for remaining coverage instead of
adjusting the CSM.

Presentation

Portfolios of Takaful contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, and portfolios of
Retakaful contracts that are assets and those that are liabilities, are presented separately in the
statement of financial position. Any assets or liabilities recognised for cash flows arising before
the recognition of the related group of contracts (including any assets for Takaful acquisition cash
flows under (iii)) are included in the carrying amount of the related portfolios of contracts.
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The Company disaggregates amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and OCI into
(a) Takaful service result, comprising Takaful revenue and Takaful service expenses; and (b)
Takaful finance income or expenses.

Income and expenses from Retakaful contracts are presented separately from income and
expenses from Takaful contracts. Income and expenses from Retakaful contracts, other than
Takaful finance income or expenses, are presented on a net basis as 'net expenses from Retakaful
contracts' in the Takaful service result.

The Company does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk between
the Takaful service result and Takaful finance income or expenses. All changes in the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk are included in the Takaful service result.

Takaful revenue and Takaful service expenses exclude any investment components.
Takaful revenue - Contracts not measured under the PAA

The Company recognises Takaful revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations - i.e. as it
provides services under groups of Takaful contracts. For contracts not measured under the PAA,
the Takaful revenue relating to services provided for each year represents the total of the changes
in the liability for remaining coverage that relate to services for which the Company expects to
receive consideration, and comprises the following items.

- A release of the CSM, measured based on coverage units provided (see' Release of the CSM'
below).

- Changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk relating to current services.

- Claims and other Takaful service expenses incurred in the year, generally measured at the
amounts expected at the beginning of the year. This includes amounts arising from the
derecognition of any assets for cash flows other than Takaful acquisition cash flows at the
date of initial recognition of a group of contracts, which are recognised as Takaful revenue
and Takaful service expenses at that date.

- Other amounts, including experience adjustments for contributions receipts for current or past
services for the life risk segment and amounts related to incurred participant tax expenses for
the participating segment.

In addition, the Company allocates a portion of premiums that relate to recovering Takaful
acquisition cash flows to each period in a systematic way based on the passage of time. The
Company recognises the allocated amount, adjusted for interest accretion at the discount rates
determined on initial recognition of the related group of contracts, as Takaful revenue and an
equal amount as Takaful service expenses.
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Release of the CSM

The amount of the CSM of a group of Takaful contracts that is recognised as Takaful revenue in
each year is determined by identifying the coverage units in the group, allocating the CSM
remaining at the end of the year (before any allocation) equally to each coverage unit provided in
the year and expected to be provided in future years, and recognising in profit or loss the amount
of the CSM allocated to coverage units provided in the year. The number of coverage units is the
quantity of services provided by the contracts in the group, determined by considering for each
contract the quantity of benefits provided and its expected coverage period. The coverage units
are reviewed and updated at each reporting date.

Services provided by Takaful contracts include Takaful coverage and, for all direct participating
contracts, investment services for managing underlying items on behalf of certificate holders. In
addition, life savings contracts may also provide investment services for generating an investment
return for the certificate holders, but only if:

- an investment component exists or the certificate holder has a right to withdraw an amount
(e.g. the certificate holder's right to receive a surrender value on cancellation of a contract);

- the investment component or withdrawal amount is expected to include an investment return;
and

- the Company expects to perform investment activities to generate that investment return.

The expected coverage period reflects expectations of lapses and cancellations of contracts, as
well as the likelihood of insured events occurring to the extent that they would affect the expected
coverage period. The period of investment services ends no later than the date on which all
amounts due to current certificate holders relating to those services have been paid.

Takaful revenue - Contracts measured under the PAA

For contracts measured under the PAA, the Takaful revenue for each period is the amount of
expected contribution receipts for providing services in the period. The Company allocates the
expected contribution receipts to each period on the following bases:

- the expected timing of incurred Takaful service expenses; and
- the passage of time.

Loss components

For contracts not measured under the PAA, the Company establishes a loss component of the
liability for remaining coverage for onerous groups of Takaful contracts. The loss component
determines the amounts of fulfilment cash flows that are subsequently presented in profit or loss
as reversals of losses on onerous contracts and are excluded from Takaful revenue when they
occur. When the fulfilment cash flows are incurred, they are allocated between the loss
component and the liability for remaining coverage excluding the loss component on a systematic
basis.

The systematic basis is determined by the proportion of the loss component relative to the total
estimate of the present value of the future cash outflows plus the risk adjustment for nonfinancial
risk at the beginning of each year (or on initial recognition if a group of contracts is initially
recognised in the year).
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Changes in fulfilment cash flows relating to future services and changes in the amount of the
Company’s share of the fair value of the underlying items for direct participating contracts are
allocated solely to the loss component. If the loss component is reduced to zero, then any excess
over the amount allocated to the loss component creates a new CSM for the group of contracts.

Takaful service expenses

Takaful service expenses arising from Takaful contracts are recognised in profit or loss generally
as they are incurred. They exclude repayments of investment components and comprise the
following items.

- Incurred claims and other Takaful service expenses: For some life risk contracts, incurred
claims also include contributions waived on detection of critical illness

- Amortisation of Takaful acquisition cash flows: For contracts not measured under the PAA,
this is equal to the amount of Takaful revenue recognised in the year that relates to recovering
Takaful acquisition cash flows. For contracts measured under the primary method (PM), the
Company amortises Takaful acquisition cash flows on a straight-line basis over the coverage
period of the group of contracts.

- Losses on onerous contracts and reversals of such losses.

- Adjustments to the liabilities for incurred claims that do not arise from the effects of the time
value of money, financial risk and changes therein.

- Impairment losses on assets for Takaful acquisition cash flows and reversals of such
impairment losses.

Net expenses from Retakaful contracts

Net expenses from Retakaful contracts comprise an allocation of Retakaful contributions paid less
amounts recovered from retakaful operators.

The Company recognises an allocation of Retakaful contributions paid in profit or loss as it
receives services under groups of Retakaful contracts. For contracts not measured under the
primary method (“PM”), the allocation of Retakaful contributions paid relating to services
received for each period represents the total of the changes in the asset for remaining coverage
that relate to services for which the Company expects to pay consideration.

For contracts measured under the PM, the allocation of Retakaful contributions paid for each
period is the amount of expected contributions payments for receiving services in the period.

For a group of Retakaful contracts covering onerous underlying contracts, the Company
establishes a loss-recovery component of the asset for remaining coverage to depict the recovery

of losses recognised:

- on recognition of onerous underlying contracts, if the Retakaful contract covering those
contracts is entered into before or at the same time as those contracts are recognised; and

- for changes in fulfilment cash flows of the group of Retakaful contracts relating to future
services that result from changes in fulfilment cash flows of the onerous underlying contracts
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The loss-recovery component determines the amounts that are subsequently presented in profit or
loss as reversals of recoveries of losses from the Retakaful contracts and are excluded from the
allocation of Retakaful contributions paid. It is adjusted to reflect changes in the loss component
of the onerous group of underlying contracts, but it cannot exceed the portion of the loss
component of the onerous group of underlying contracts that the Company expects to recover
from the Retakaful contracts.

Takaful finance income and expenses

Takaful finance income and expenses comprise changes in the carrying amounts of groups of
Takaful and Retakaful contracts arising from the effects of the time value of money, financial risk
and changes therein, unless any such changes for groups of direct participating contracts are
allocated to a loss component and included in Takaful service expenses. They include changes in
the measurement of groups of contracts caused by changes in the value of underlying items
(excluding additions and withdrawals).

Takaful and Retakaful contracts - Fair value approach

Under the fair value approach, the CSM (or the loss component) at 1 January 2022 was determined
as the difference between the fair value of a group of contracts at that date and the fulfilment cash
flows at that date.

For all contracts measured under the fair value approach, the Company used reasonable and
supportable information available at 1 January 2022 to determine:

- how to identify groups of contracts;
- whether a contract meets the definition of a direct participating contract; and
- how to identify discretionary cash flows for contracts without direct participation contracts.

For contracts acquired in a transfer of contracts or a business combination before 2004, the
Company classified liabilities for settlement of claims as liabilities for incurred claims, even
though the claims might have been incurred before the contracts were acquired.

Some groups of contracts measured under the fair value approach contain contracts issued more
than one year apart. For these groups, the discount rates on initial recognition were determined at
1 January 2022 instead of at the date of initial recognition.

For all contracts measured under the fair value approach, the amount of Takaful finance income
or expenses accumulated in the Takaful finance reserve at 1 January 2022 was determined to be
Zero.

For groups of Retakaful contracts covering onerous underlying contracts, the Company
established a loss-recovery component at 1 January 2022. The Company determined the loss-
recovery component by multiplying:

- the amount of the loss component that relates to the underlying contracts at 1 January 2022;
and

- the percentage of claims on the underlying contracts that the Company expected to recover
from the Retakaful contracts.
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Takaful acquisition cash flows - Fair value approach
The Company measured an asset for Takaful acquisition cash flows under the fair value approach
at an amount equal to the Takaful acquisition cash flows that it would incur at 1 January 2022 for

the rights to obtain:

- recoveries of Takaful acquisition cash flows from contributions of contracts issued before 1
January 2022 but not yet recognised at that date, and renewals of such contracts;

- renewals of contracts recognised at 1 January 2022; and

- other future contracts after 1 January 2022 without paying again Takaful acquisition cash
flows that it has already paid.

Qard

Any deficit in the participants’ risk fund within the Takaful Fund is made good via a Qard, which
is a profit free financing, granted by the takaful operator fund to the participants’ risk fund. In the
participants’ risk fund, the Qard is included in FCF used to measure the takaful liabilities under
IFRS 17.

Qard is measured in the fulfilment cash flows at a value discounted for time value of money,
which reflects the economic effect of the expected future cash flow, consistent with all the other
cash flows measured in FCF. This accounting measurement does not affect the Takaful Fund’s

obligation to repay the nominal amount of Qard, nor does it affect or change any rights or
obligations of the takaful operator fund.

Qard shall be repaid from future surpluses of the participants’ risk.

Other revenue recognition
Financing income

Income from financing is recognised on an accrual basis and on a time proportion basis that takes
into account the effective yield of the asset.

Administrative income

Administrative income derived from Retakaful in the course of ceding contributions.
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Wakalah fees

Wakalah fees are recognised as income or expenses by the respective funds based on a
predetermined percentage of gross contributions upon inception of certificates. Wakalah
surplus/ (deficit) is arrived at after deducting commission and management expenses against
the Wakalah fees charged.

Other revenue recognition
Financing income

Income from financing is recognised on an accrual basis and on a time proportion basis that takes
into account the effective yield of the asset.

Administrative income
Administrative income derived from Retakaful in the course of ceding contributions.
Wakalah fees

Wakalah fees are recognised as income or expenses by the respective funds based on a
predetermined percentage of gross contributions upon inception of certificates. Wakalah
surplus/ (deficit) is arrived at after deducting commission and management expenses against
the Wakalah fees charged.

Performance Fee

The performance fee model and contract allows for the distribution of profit (surplus) attributable
to participants funds arisen from the year to the Takaful Operator as an incentive for continuously
ensuring the Takaful funds are managed in a responsible and sustainable manner. Performance fee
is only applicable in the scenario where the funds are achieving profits (surplus) in a particular year.
The surpluses are actuarially appraised annually. It is declared subsequent to every year end as part
of the annual surplus distribution policy approved by the Syariah Advisory Body, which includes
the surplus distribution to participants in the form of hibah. In accordance with the terms of the
contract, the maximum performance fee that can be declared to the Takaful Operator cannot exceed
50% of the annual profits (surplus) in any year. The performance fee is paid out to the Takaful
Operator subsequent to its appraisal year and the accounting recognition is therefore to recognise it
as an income to the Takaful Operator in the year it is declared and paid. No accrual of performance
Fee is recognised since it is only recognised in the period that declaration of the surplus distribution
is made. The performance Fee model is only applicable for takaful contracts entered with the
participants from 1 January 2022 onwards.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Company's right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of'quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

FS37



3.10

3.11

3.12

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Administrative fee

Administrative fees in the Company's profit or loss represent administrative expenses paid to
third parties at an agreed percentage for each certificate underwritten. The administrative fees
are borne by the Takaful Operator and this is in accordance with the principles of wakalah as
approved by the Shariah Advisory Body and is as agreed between the participants and the
Company.

Zakat

This represents an obligatory amount payable by the Company on behalf of shareholders to
comply with the Hukum Syara’ and as approved by the Syariah Advisory Body. Zakat is
computed at 2.5775% of zakat base amount of the Company, which is computed using the
“Invested Fund Method” in accordance with AAOIFI Accounting, Auditing and Governance
under Financial Accounting Standard No. (9): Zakah. The zakat computation is reviewed and
approved by the Syariah Advisory Body. The Board has the discretion to pay additional amount
above the obligatory zakat amount payable.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or in OCI.

The Company has determined that charges related to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatments, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under [AS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year,
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the
best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to
income taxes, if any. Current tax also included any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary

differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary difference. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient
to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business plans of the Company. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of
future taxable profits improves.

New standards and amendments

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Company
has not early adopted the new standards, interpretations and amendments to standards in preparing
these financial statements.

*  Amendment to IFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

* Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to Conceptual Framework

¢ Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use

* Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

* Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

*  Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS 2 Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies.
*  Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

*  Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

*  Amendments to 1AS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules
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Balances with Brunei Darussalam Central Bank

Under Section 16 of the Takaful Order, 2008 and Regulation 9(1) of the Takaful Regulations, 2008,
the Company is required to maintain cash balance of BND$1 million with Brunei Darussalam
Central Bank (“BDCB”).

Under Section 4(1)(a) of the Motor Vehicle Insurance (Third Party Risks) Act, Chapter 90, the
Company has placed a cash deposit of BND$1 million with BDCB.

Financial investments

2023 2022
General Compan General
Takaful PAY  Takaful Company

BND’000 BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
Fair value through profit or loss

Sukuk / Debt securities 95,373 95,373 91,245 91,245
Investment in mutual funds 3,137 8,978 2,575 7,368
Investments at FVTPL 98,510 104,351 93,820 98,613

Fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI)

Unquoted equity security - 18,151 — 16,644
Investments at FVOCI - 18,151 - 16,644
Total 98,510 122,502 93,820 115,257

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Sukuk/Debt investments securities have been designated as FVTPL. As at 31 December 2023,
the maximum exposure to credit risk of these financial assets was their carrying amount of
BND$95,373,000 (2022: BND$91,245,000). .

Equity investments designated as at FVOCI

The Company has designated the above equity investments as at FVOCI because it intends to hold
them for long term strategic purposes. These are shares held in a related party of BND$18,151,000
(2022: BND$16,644,000). No strategic investments were disposed of during 2023 and 2022, and
there were no transfers of any cumulative gain or loss within equity relating to these investments.

Information about the Company’s exposures to credit and market risks, and fair value measurement,
is included in note 21.
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*Unallocated surplus (B71) refers to the portion of surplus or profit that has not yet been determined for
distribution to certificate holders or other stakeholders and does not belong to any specific groups of contracts. It
is a temporary accumulation of funds that the takaful operator holds, reflecting the difference between the
contributions collected and the claims paid, investment income, and other expenses. The takaful operator holds
this surplus to cover potential future claims, invest in new opportunities, and ultimately, distribute it to certificate
holders or other stakeholders after it has been allocated. The takaful operator may also choose to distribute the
surplus in future to certificate holders, either through a cash payment or by allocating it to future contributions.

Takaful and Retakaful contracts (continued)
A. Movements in Takaful and Retakaful Contract balances

The following reconciliations show how the net carrying amounts of takaful and retakaful contracts changed
during the year as a result of cash flows and amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and OCI.

The Company presents a table that separately analyses movements in the liabilities for remaining coverage and
movements in the liabilities for incurred claims and reconciles these movements to the line items in the
statement of profit or loss and OCIL.

A second reconciliation is presented for contracts not measured under Premium Allocation Approach (PAA),
which separately analyses changes in the estimates of the present value of future cash flows, the risk adjustment
for non-financial risk and Contractual Service Margin (CSM).

The estimates of the present value of future cash flows from takaful and retakaful contract assets represents the
Company’s estimated exposure to credit risk from these assets.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

6 Takaful and Retakaful Contracts Held

C. Contractual Service Margin (CSM)

REMAINING CSM FROM TAKAFUL CONTRACTS ESTIMATED

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
{B$'000)
157,163
i s
VMARINE
S
ENGINEERING O
ENERGY d
2,666
2023 2024 2005 2026 2027 2008 200 2030

The following table sets out when the Company expects to recognise the remaining CSM in profit or loss
after the reporting date for contracts not measured under the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA).

More
31 December 2023 ST Vil 2 &= i 5-10 - yan 10 Total
less years years years years years
years
Takaful Contracts issued
Aviation = - - — - = = =
Energy 89,567 = — = = = - 89,567
Engineering 46,019 2,666 = = = = = 48,685
Marine 18.911 — - — - = — 18.911
154,497 2.666 = - - = - 157,163
More
31 December 2023 Lyeagon 2 e i o) 5-10 4an10 Total
less years years years years years
years
Retakaful Contracts
Issued
Aviation = - - == - = = =
Energy = - - = - = = —
Engineering 717 = = - = = = 717
Marine — — - — - - — =
717 = — — - - = 717
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Takaful and Retakaful Contracts Held

Contractual Service Margin (CSM) (continued)

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

More
31 December 2022 lveanen N 2 ety o) 5-10 4010 Total
less years years years years years
years
Takaful Contracts Issued
Aviation 2,000 - = = - - = 2,000
Energy - = - — = = = =
Engineering 25,650 4,470 340 19 14 = = 30,493
Marine 2.445 — ~ = — = - 2.445
30,095 4.470 340 19 14 = = 34,938
More
31 December 2022 Thyeantn 152 2 =0 e S than 10 Total
less years years years years years
years
Retakaful Contracts
Issued
Aviation — - — - — ~ e= -
Energy == = - = - = =
Engineering 1,513 1,513
Marine 38.049 38,049
39,562 - - - - = = 39,562
D. Participants’ Fund
< 2023 > < 2022 >
General @onmar General Compan
Takaful pany Takaful pany
BND’000 BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
Accumulated undistri ; . Ea _ .
Il TRTE, 37,160 37,160 43,239 43,239
surplus
Surplus for the year 25,720 25,720 10,414 10,414
62,880 62,880 53,653 53,653
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Other receivables

< 2023 > < 2022 >
General C General Compan
Takaful ompany Takaful pany
BND’000 BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
Other receivables 13,462 9,986 — 11,082
Accrued income 1,770 2,788 1,202 1,614
Deposits = 78 — 78
Prepayments = 37 = 42
15,232 12,889 1,202 12,816

Other receivables are current. No financial assets and liabilities have been set off for presentation
purposes. The management believes that there is no significant credit risk in respect of other
receivables as they are not material and all fall due within a year.

Cash and cash equivalents

< 2023 > < 2022 >
General Compan General Comvan
Takaful pany Takaful pany

BND’000 BND’000 BND’000 BND’000

Cash and bank balances 15,695 35,208 15,148 17,753
Short term deposits 30,000 68,500 42,100 83,800
45,695 103,708 57,248 101,553

As at the reporting date, the carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate their fair
value. All short term deposits are generally placed on short-term maturities or repayable on demand.

Other payables
General
Takaful Company
Fund
BND’000  BND’000
2023
Advanced contributions from participants 2 2
Accrued expenses = 1,864
Other payables 2,120 2,758
2,122 4,624
2022
Advanced contributions from participants 2 2
Accrued expenses = 1,697
Other payables 4,782 5474
4,784 7,173

Other payables are all current.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Capital and reserves

2023 and 2022
Number of shares Amount

BND’000 BND’000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of $1 each 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid up
Ordinary shares of $1 each 11,421 11,421
Ordinary shares

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and

are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets

until the investments are derecognised or impaired.

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Fair value reserve 13,442 11,935
Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company:
For the year ended 31 December
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Paid by the Company to owners of the Company
BND$0.1204 per ordinary share (in respect of financial year
2022) 1,375 v
BND$0.1998 per ordinary share (in respect of financial year
- 2,282
2021)
1,375 2,282

After the respective reporting dates, the following dividends were proposed by the directors.

These dividends have not been provided for:

2023
BND’000

BND$0.1476 per ordinary share (2022: BND$0.1204) 1,686

2022
BND’000

1,375
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Takaful Revenue

General Takaful
Amounts relating to changes in liabilities for remaining
coverage
CSM recognised for services provided
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk
expired
Expected incurred claims and other takaful service
expenses
Experience adjustments not related to future service
Amounts relating to recovery of takaful acquisition cash flows
Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total takaful revenue

Company
Incurred claims and other takaful service expenses
CSM recognised for services provided
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk
expired
Expected incurred claims and other takaful service expenses
Experience adjustments not related to future service
Amounts relating to recovery of takaful acquisition cash flows
Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total takaful revenue

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

639 112

945 1,127
17,608 18,674
1,102 1,166
20,294 21,079
68,234 65,352
88,528 86,431
918 948

433 135
17,334 17,651
1,080 1,168
264 823
20,029 20,725
68,251 64,653
88,280 85,378
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Takaful service expenses

General Takaful
Incurred claims and other takaful service expenses
Incurred claims and benefits
Incurred takaful service expense
Amortisation of acquisition cash flows
Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of losses on onerous
contracts
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims relating to past
service
Total takaful service expenses

Represented by:

Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total takaful service expenses

Company
Incurred claims and other takaful service expenses
Incurred claims and benefits
Incurred maintenance expenses
Amortisation of acquisition cash flows — wakalah fees
Losses on onerous contracts and reversal of losses on onerous
contracts
Changes to liabilities for incurred claims
Total takaful service expenses

Represented by:

Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total takaful expenses

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
BND’000  BND’000

23,650 20,107

(206) (8)

20,303 22,609

27 2,013

2,165 12,324

45,939 57,045

1,841 11,418

44,098 45,627

45,939 57,045

2023 2022

BND’000  BND’000

23,691 20,066

7,858 7,827

11,964 11,896

2) 75

858 12,732

44,369 52,596

1,863 7,744

42,506 44,852

44,369 52,596
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Net expenses from Retakaful contracts

General Takaful
Release of expected recovery for takaful service expenses
incurred in the year
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
Other amounts including experience adjustments for income
items
Contracts under PAA
Amounts recoverable for claims and expenses incurred for
the year
Amount recoverable for claims
Changes in amount recoverable arising from changes in
LIC

Total net expenses from retakaful contract

Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total net expenses from retakaful contract

Company
Release of expected recovery for takaful service expenses
incurred in the year
Change in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk
Other amounts including experience adjustments for income
items
Contracts under PAA
Amounts recoverable for claims and expenses incurred for
the year
Amount recoverable for claims
Changes in amount recoverable arising from changes in
LIC

Total net expenses from retakaful contract

Contracts not measured under PAA
Contracts measured under PAA
Total net expenses from retakaful contract

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022
BND’000  BND’000
(16,359) (16,194)
(462) (535)
12 (295)
(8,337) (6,486)
6,175 6,392
(1,337) 4,716
(20,308) (12,402)
(15,631) (12,402)
(4,677) =
(20,308) (12,402)
(16,342) (16,605)
(462) (125)
38 (1,474)
(8,336) (6,486)
6,175 6,392
3,737) 1,828
22,644) (16,470)
(15,805) (16,470)
(6,859) -
(22,664) (16,470)
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Total investment income and net takaful financial result

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

General Takaful

Investment income - others 4,539 3,819
Investment income — FVOCI - -
Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets 1,028 (10,023)
Total amounts recognised in the profit or loss 5,567 (6,2006)
Amounts recognised in OCI — =
Total investment income 5,567 (6,206)

Takaful finance expenses from Takaful contracts issued

Profit accreted to takaful contracts using locked-in rate 40 11

Due to changes in profit rates and financial assumptions = -

Total Takaful finance expenses from Takaful contracts 40 1
issued

Represented by:

Amounts recognised in profit or loss 5,607 (6,195)

Retakaful finance income/(expenses) from Retakaful
contracts held

Profit accreted to Retakaful contracts using locked-in rate 27N ®))
Due to changes in profit rates and financial assumptions (155) =
Total retakaful finance income from Retakaful contracts

held (182) )

Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (182) &)

(182) (5)

Total net investment income, takaful finance expenses and

Retakaful finance income S (6,200)
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Total investment income and net takaful financial result (continued)

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Company
Investment income - others 5,389 4,232
Investment income — FVOCI 1,171 1,171
Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets 2,076 (11,265)
Total investment income 8,636 (5,862)
Net finance expenses from Takaful contracts issued
Profit accreted to takaful contracts using locked-in rate 8 1
Due to changes in profit rates and financial assumptions (100) (538)
Total finance expenses from Takaful contracts issued (92) (537)
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss 8,544 (6,399)
Net finance (expenses)/income from Retakaful contracts held
Profit accreted to Retakaful contracts using locked-in rate 27) 3
Due to changes in profit rates and financial assumptions (155) —
Total finance (expenses)/income from Retakaful contracts held (182) 3
Represented by:
Amounts recognised in profit or loss (182) 3
(182) 3
Total net mvestmen‘F income, takaful finance expenses and 8.362 (6,396)
Retakaful finance income
Other operating income
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
General Takaful
Other miscellaneous 1) i
€9) =
Company
Service charge fee 146 133
Towing income 1,037 1,130
Miscellaneous income 4,095 4,928
5,278 6,191
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Other operating expenses

The General Takaful fund’s other operating expenses mainly consist of foreign exchange gains and
losses arising from USD denominated financial assets. The Company’s other operating expenses

mainly consist of non-directly attributable expenses at year end.

Tax expenses

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Tax recognised in profit or loss
Current tax expense
Current year - 1,493
Changes in estimates related to prior years 142 (276)
142 15217
Total tax expense 142 1,217
A reconciliation of effective tax expense for the Company is as follows:
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Profit before zakat and taxation 4,166 4,421
Income tax using the domestic corporate tax rate of ' 771 318
18.5% (2022: 18.5%)
Changes in estimates related to prior years 142 (276)
Others (771 675
142 1,217

Subject to agreement by the Tax Authority, the Company has applied for a refund of Income Tax
relating to Year of Assessment 2013, 2014 and 2016 (Years ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and
2015 respectively) amounting to $383,000 as a result of the effect of the application of
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as required by the Regulator in 2014.
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Zakat

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

The amount of zakat is determined by using 2.5775% based on the net invested fund method and
is payable by the Company in accordance with the Hukum Syara’. The amount of zakat is
calculated on the net current assets of the shareholders’ fund, and is payable by the Company in
accordance with the Hukum Syara’. There was a change in ownership of the immediate holding
company to a charitable foundation on 12 December 2013. The Company is exempted from
paying zakat on the shareholding of Yayasan Sultan Haji Hassanal Bolkiah (“YSHHB”). This is
in accordance with AAOIFI Shariah standard no (35) ruling 3/1/6 and 3/1/7.

Based on a Shariah endorsement in October 2023, the Company will begin to pay zakat, if
applicable, to the relevant authorities. Prior to this, the zakat of the Company was paid on behalf
by a related party as its results were consolidated into a larger group.

Expenses

An analysis of the expenses incurred by the Company in the reporting period is provided:

Agent commissions

Intercompany recharges

Legal, professional and audit fees
Personnel expenses

Rental and utilities

Office and administrative expenses
Sales, marketing and promotions
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Represented by:

Expenses attributed to takaful acquisition cashflows
Other directly attributable expenses

Other operating expenses

Non attributable expenses

Total

Total
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

7,021 7,764
9,933 7,899
615 277
5,008 4,947
300 402

454 414

396 148

246 200
23,973 22,051
5,016 4,490
8,056 7,835
8,364 8,000
2,537 1,726
23,973 22,051
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Significant related party transactions
Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company either directly or indirectly. The
key management personnel include all the directors of the Company and certain senior management
members of the Company.

Key management personnel compensation comprised:
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Short-term employee benefits
Directors’ fees and other remuneration = =
Other key management personnel:
- Salary and employee benefits ey .

Other related party transactions

The immediate holding company is Syarikat Takaful Brunei Darussalam, an investment holding
company. The Company is an associate of Bank Islam Brunei Darussalam via its immediate holding
company, and has significant related party transactions with Bank Islam Brunei Darussalam and its
subsidiaries. Bank Islam Brunei Darussalam is a parent company into which the financial results of
the Company are ultimately consolidated and publicly made available.

During the year, apart from the balances and transactions disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the transactions with the Company’s related parties are as follows:

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Shareholder
- Commission and fees paid/ payable 114 133

All short term deposits at respective year ends are held with related parties (note 8). Management
fees of BND$9,933,000 (2022: BND$7,899,000) were paid to the immediate holding company
during the year.

The management is of the opinion that all the above transactions have been entered into in the

normal course of business and have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially
different from those obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Takaful risk management

The risk under any one takaful contract is the possibility that the takaful event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of a takaful contract, this risk
is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of takaful contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
provisioning, the principal risk that the Company faces under its takaful contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the takaful liabilities. This could
occur because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Takaful
events are random, and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year
to year from the level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar takaful contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its
takaful underwriting strategy to diversify the type of takaful risks accepted and within each of
these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the
expected outcome.

Factors that aggravate takaful risk include lack of risk diversification in terms of type and amount
of risk and type of industry covered.

Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors such as the increase in the
number of cases being heard in the court that have been inactive or latent for a long period of
time. Estimated inflation is also a significant factor due to the long period typically required to
settle these cases.

The Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, retakaful arrangements and
claims handling process.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in
terms of type and amount of risk. Underwriting limits that are in compliance with Brunei laws
and regulations are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria.

General Takaful Fund

The key coverage for the General Takaful contracts

The key coverage for the General Takaful contracts are Motor, Fire, Workmen Compensation,
Personal Accident and Energy.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Concentration of General Takaful risk

The following gives details of the Company’s concentration of risks based on takaful revenue by

main product categories:

Gross Retakaful Net
BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
General Takaful Fund
2023
Motor 44,454 (1,441) 43,013
Fire 4,618 (654) 3,964
Personal Accident 5,691 = 5,691
Workmen Compensation 6,918 (564) 6,354
Energy 16,122 (14,335) 1,787
Others 10,725 (3.314) 7,411
88,528 (20.308) 68.220
2022
Motor 41,490 665 42,155
Fire 4,297 (585) 3,712
Personal Accident 6,179 = 6,179
Workmen Compensation 4,812 (585) 4227
Energy 15,886 (10,990) 4,896
Others 13,767 (907) 12,860
86,431 (12.,402) 74,029
Gross Retakaful Net
BND’000 BND’000 BND’000
Company
2023
Motor 44,454 (1,441) 43,013
Fire 4,618 (654) 3,964
Personal Accident 5,691 — 5,691
Workmen Compensation 6,918 (564) 6,354
Energy 16,122 (14,335) 1,787
Others 10,477 (5,670) 4,807
88,280 (22.664) 65,616
2022
Motor 41,490 665 42,155
Fire 4,297 (585) 3,712
Personal Accident 6,179 = 6,179
Workmen Compensation 4,812 (585) 4,227
Energy 15,886 (10,991) 4,895
Others 12,714 (4,974) 7,740
85.378 (16.470) 68.908
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Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 20023

Key assumptions

The key assumptions to which the estimation of actuarial liabilities is particularly sensitive are as
follows:

Discount rate

As the liabilities are the present value of future cash flows, both income and outgo, a decrcase in
discount rate would have an increasing impact on the liabilities and vice-versa.

Surrender rate

This is only applicable particularly to savings products, where when the rate is reduced (products
with Participant Investment Fund) or increased (products without Participant Investment Fund),
will impact to an increase of the liability.

Sensitivity analysis

The General Takaful actuarial liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions above and change in
these assumptions may impact the liabilities of the General Takaful Fund significantly. The
correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the actuarial liabilities.

The purpose of the sensitivity analysis is to assess the relative importance of key assumptions used
in the actuarial valuation of actuarial liabilities as at 31 December 2023, inclusive of the provision
for adverse deviation (refer to “base scenario” in the sensitivity analysis table)

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all
other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on profit and loss. In reality, there are
possibilities that a combination of adverse and favourable changes could arise. The sensitivities
cannot capture all possible outcomes.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of actuarial liabilities impacts the profit and loss:
- Ultimate Loss Ratio;

2023 BND’000
Net actuarial liabilities

Base scenario 29,886
Assumptions aii;nszgzs +10% points
Ultimate Loss Ratio 19,296
2022 BND’000
Net actuarial liabilities

Base scenario 14,834
Assumptions aii:g;;ﬁs +10% points
Ultimate Loss Ratio 4,834
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 3] December 2()23

Claims development

The following tables show the estimate of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims
notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at the end of reporting period, together with
cumulative payments to-date for non-life covers.

In setting provisions for claims, the Company give consideration to the probability and magnitude
of future experience being more adverse than assumed and exercise the degree of caution in setting
reserves when there is considerable uncertainty. In general, the uncertainty associated with the
ultimate claims experience in an accident year is greatest when the accident year is at an early stage
of development and the margin necessary to provide the necessary confidence in adequacy of
provision is relatively at its highest. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes
more certain, the relative level of margin maintained should decrease.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Financial risk management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

»  Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
= Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s
management of capital.

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s cash
and cash equivalents and other investments.

The Company’s portfolio of sukuk, short-term and other investments are subject to credit risk. This
risk is defined as the potential loss resulting from adverse changes in a borrower’s ability to repay
the debt. The Company’s objective is to earn competitive relative returns by investing in a
diversified portfolio of securities. Management has an investment credit risk policy in place. Limits
are established to manage credit quality and concentration risk.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
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Year ended 31 December 2023

The Company has takaful and other receivables balances that are subject to credit risk. Among the
most significant of these are retakaful recoveries. To mitigate the risk of the counterparties not
paying the amount due, the Company has established certain business and financial guidelines for
retakaful approval, incorporating ratings by major agencies and considering currently available
market information. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the
Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Company also periodically reviews the
financial stability of retakaful companies from public and other sources and the settlement trend of
amounts due from retakaful companies.

The Company held cash and short term deposits of BND$103,708,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022:
BND$101,553,000) which represents its maximum credit exposures on these assets. The cash and
cash equivalents are held with a related financial institution counterparty which is rated A- (2022:
A-).

Credit exposure

The maximum exposure to credit risk is normally represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the financial statements, although in the case of takaful receivables, it is fairly
common practice for accounts to be settled on a net basis. In such cases, the maximum exposure to
credit risk is expected to be limited to the extent of the amount of financial assets that has not been
fully offset by financial liabilities with the same counterparty. The maximum amount recoverable
from each retakaful operator at any time is also dependent on the claims recoverable from such
retakaful operator at that point in time.

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of debt investments at FVTPL.
2023 2022
Credit Rating FVTPL FVTPL
BND’000 BND’000

Quoted sukuks

BBB-to AAA 87,709 76,958
BBtoD 5,876 5,892
Unrated 1,788 8,395
Gross carrying amounts 95,373 91,245

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of retakaful balance.

2023 2022
Credit Rating FVTPL FVTPL
BND’000 BND’000

Retakaful balances
BBB-to AAA 15,058 17,225
Gross carrying amounts 15,058 17,225
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
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Year ended 31 December 2023

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

No financial instruments are offset in the statement of financial position as there are no enforceable
master netting agreements and similar arrangements in place.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under normal conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Management of liquidity risks

The Company’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Company includes day-to-
day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met,
maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against
any unforeseen interruption to cash flow and monitoring the liquidity ratios of the Company against

internal and regulatory requirements.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day,
week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management.

Exposure to liquidity risks
The analysis of the estimated timing of cash outflows are shown in the respective notes as follows:

Other receivables Note 7
Other payables Note 9

Due to the nature of its business, the Company’s contributions and claims liabilities which comprise
provision for unexpired risks and provision for outstanding claims are likely to materialise fully
within 10 years.
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TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in market
profit rates (profit rate risk) and foreign exchange rates (foreign currency risk) and market prices
(price risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument
or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

i)

Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market profit rates.

The Company is exposed to profit rate risk primarily through their investments in fixed
income securities and deposit placements. These instruments are fixed rate and held at
amortised cost. Therefore, a change in profit rates at reporting date would not affect profit
or loss.

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its profit rate risks.
While the Company’s cash and cash equivalents earn a nominal profit sum, this does not
represent a significant concentration of profit rate risk. As such, no sensitivity has been
performed.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

During the ordinary course of business, the Company may engage in foreign currency
denominated transactions or invest in foreign currency equity or sukuk. As a result, the
Company is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates.

The Company operates solely in Brunei, with a significant majority of its takaful liabilities
and its financial assets denominated in Brunei Dollars.

The summary quantitative data about the exposure to currency risk is as follows:

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Cash and cash equivalents 506 3,549
Other investments 104,351 98,613
Net statement of financial position exposure 104,857 102,162
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Year ended 31 December 2023

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the BND, as indicated below against
the USD at 31 December 2023 would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular, yield
rate, remain constant.

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
USD (10% strengthening) (10,486) (10,216)
USD (10% weakening) 10,486 10,216

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company invests primarily in Sukuk whereby fair values or future cash flows of the
financial instruments mainly arise from changes in effective profit rate and the issuers’

repayment abilities.

The following table analyses fair value measurements for financial instruments, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

® Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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Measurement of fair value

TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD

Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

a) Valuation technigques and significant unobservable inputs used

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring fair values, as well as
significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Significant unobservable

Inter-relationship
between key
unobservable inputs and

Type Valuation Technique inputs fair value measurement
Equity Market comparison -  Adjusted market The estimated fair value
securities technique: The wvaluation multiple would increase (decrease) if

model is based on market
multiples  derived from
price-to-book [PB] ratio of
comparable companies to
investee, adjusted for the
non-marketability of the
equity investee.

Liquidity discount

the adjusted multiple are
higher (lower)

The estimated fair value
would increase (decrease) if
the liquidity discount is
lower (higher)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Type Valuation Technique

Other The carrying amount of
financial financial assets and
assets and liabilities with a maturity of

liabilities*

less than one year are
assumed to approximate
their fair values because of
the short period of maturity.

* Other financial assets and liabilities include takaful and other receivables, balances with Brunei
Darussalam Central Bank, cash and cash equivalents and takaful and other payables.

FS104



TAKAFUL BRUNEI AM SDN BHD
Financial statements
Year ended 31 December 2023

b) Level 3 recurring fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances
for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Equities Total
o BND’000 __ BND’000
Balance at | January 16,644 16,644
Total unrealised gains or losses in OCI 1,507 1,507
Balance at 31 December 18,151 18,151

Equities Total
2022 BND’000 BND’000
Balance at 1 January 16,409 16,409
Total unrealised gains or losses in OCI 235 235
Balance at 31 December 16,644 16,644

¢) Capital management

The Company reviews its capital structure to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going
concern and complies with regulators’ Margin of Solvency. The capital structure of the Company
comprises of share capital, investment revaluation reserves and retained earnings.

In accordance with Section 21 of the Takaful Order, 2008 and Section 8 of the Takaful Regulations,
2008, the Company is required to maintain:

i)  afund margin of solvency in respect of each of the takaful funds; and
ii) takaful operator to maintain surplus of assets over liabilities of not less than 20 percent.

In addition to the above, management has included a Provision Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation
(“PRAD?”) in the valuation of Takaful contract liabilities in accordance with prudential requirements

specified by the regulator BDCB, effective since the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Company was in compliance (2022: in compliance) with the prescribed margin of solvency for
the participants’ funds as well as the takaful operator fund throughout the year.

There were no significant changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the
year.
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Leases

Leases as lessee

The Company leases office space and equipment. The leases typically run for a period of one to five
years. Lease payments are renegotiated before the lease expiry to reflect market rentals.

The Company leases IT equipment with contract terms of one to three years. These leases are short-
term and/or leases of low value items. The Company has elected not to recognise the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

Right-of-use assets

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Balance at 1 January 53 230
Additions to right-of-use assets 679 7
Depreciation charge for the year (178) (184)
Balance at 31 March 2024 554 53
Lease liabilities
2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Less than one year 66 66
One to five years 507 -
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 573 66

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

Balance at 1 January 66 248
Changes from financing cash flows

Payment of lease liabilities (162) (182)
Finance charge paid (20) 10)
Other changes

New lease 669 =

Finance expense 20 10
Balance at 31 December 573 66
Current 66 66
Non-current 507 -
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position

at 31 December 573 66
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Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Lease liabilities are part of financial statement captions as stated. Finance charges are part of
financial statement caption ‘Finance costs’.

Leases are presented as follows in the income statement

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000
Finance charges on lease liabilities 20 10
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 178 184
Expenses relating to short-term leases 8 37

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

2023 2022
BND’000 BND’000

Total cash outflow for leases 182 192
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